

MS Outlook Proficiency Test

Technical Manual and User Guide



Publisher Information

Seliant Aps Gammel Hasserisvej 123 9000 Aalborg Denmark

Copyright © 2025 Seliant Aps. All rights reserved.

Warning: No part of this publication may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopy, recording, or any information storage and retrieval system, without permission in writing from the copyright owner.

Product Code: MSOL25

Version: 1.0

For orders and inquiries: Seliant Aps, Customer Service Email: contact@seliant.com Website: www.seliant.com



MS Outlook Proficiency Test

Technical Manual

This document serves as the official Technical Manual for the MS Outlook Proficiency Test. It provides a comprehensive overview of the purpose, structure, and psychometric foundations of the assessment, along with detailed guidance on its administration, scoring, and interpretation.

The MS Outlook Proficiency Test is designed to measure the essential email, scheduling, organization, and communication-management skills required in a wide range of administrative, clerical, customer service, and office-based roles. These skills, including inbox management, calendar coordination, contact handling, message formatting, rules and automation, and navigation, form foundational competencies necessary for maintaining efficient, accurate, and professional communication within modern work environments.

The test offers an objective, reliable, and valid measure of these core abilities, supporting organizations in making informed, evidence-based decisions when selecting or developing employees who rely on practical Outlook proficiency. Whether used for hiring, training evaluation, or internal development, the assessment provides a standardized method for identifying candidates who can confidently perform everyday Outlook tasks.

In addition to outlining the theoretical basis and validation evidence supporting the test, this manual includes practical guidance on administering the assessment effectively, ensuring fairness and compliance with professional testing standards, and interpreting the results in alignment with best practices. Whether you are an HR professional, recruiter, trainer, or decision-maker involved in candidate evaluation, this manual serves as a key resource for understanding and applying the MS Outlook Proficiency Test.



Contents

1.	Introduction	1
	1.1 Purpose of the Test	1
	1.2 Intended Audience	1
	1.3 How to Use This Manual	1
2.	Test Specifications	3
	2.1 Delivery Method	3
	2.2 Device Compatibility	3
	2.3 Skills Measured	3
	2.4 Intended Difficulty Level	3
3.	Content Domains	4
	3.1 Email Composition and Etiquette	4
	3.2 Inbox and Folder Management	4
	3.3 Calendar and Scheduling	4
	3.4 Attachments and File Management	4
	3.5 Email Organization and Search	5
	3.6 Rules and Quick Steps	5
	3.7 Security and Best Practices	5
	3.8 Summary of Item Categories	5
4.	Item Development	7
	4.1 Item Types	7
	4.2 Answer Options	7
	4.3 Item Writing Guidelines	7
	4.4 Example Item	8
	4.5 Item Review and Quality Control	8
5.	Scoring & Interpretation	9
	5.1 Scoring Method	9
	5.2 Score Reporting	9
	5.3 Interpretation of Scores	9
	5.4 Suggested Use of Scores	10
	5.5 Limitations	11
6.	Test Administration	12
	6.1 Delivery Method	12
	6.2 Technical Requirements	12



	6.3 Test Environment	12
	6.4 Candidate Instructions	12
	6.5 Security Measures	13
	6.6 Sample Questions	13
7.	Validity & Reliability	14
	7.1 Sample	14
	7.2 Face Validity	14
	7.3 Construct Validity	14
	7.4 Item and Test Performance	15
	7.5 Reliability Evidence	15
	7.6 Summary of Validity Evidence	15
8.	Security & Fair Use	16
	8.1 Test Security	16
	8.2 Candidate Integrity	16
	8.3 Fair Use of Scores	16
	8.4 Ethical Guidelines	16
9.	Appendices	17
	Appendix A. Sample Item	17
	Appendix B. Technical Requirements Checklist	17
	Appendix C. Score Interpretation Tables	18
	Appendix D. Percentile Norm Ranges	19
	Appendix E. Item Statistics	20
	Appendix F. Norm Group: Age Distribution	21
	Appendix G. Norm Group: Country Distribution	21
	Appendix H. Norm Group: Occupational Group	22



1. Introduction

The MS Outlook Proficiency Test assesses a candidate's foundational skills and knowledge in Microsoft Outlook, focusing on real-world tasks such as managing email, organizing calendars, scheduling meetings, creating tasks, and using built-in communication tools. These skills are essential for administrative, clerical, customer service, coordination, and office-based roles where efficient communication and scheduling form a core part of daily responsibilities.

The assessment consists of 20 multiple-choice questions with a 15-minute time limit. It measures practical Outlook competencies that enable individuals to navigate email features, manage appointments, organize workflow, and communicate effectively. The test is designed for entry-level to intermediate users, while offering sufficient range to differentiate varying skill levels.

1.1 Purpose of the Test

- To identify candidates with essential Outlook skills required for daily communication and scheduling tasks.
- To provide employers with a reliable, standardized assessment of Outlook proficiency.
- To support hiring decisions by ensuring candidates can manage email, calendar functions, and productivity tools efficiently and accurately.

1.2 Intended Audience

The MS Outlook Proficiency Test is suitable for roles such as:

- Administrative professionals
- Executive assistants
- Office coordinators
- Customer service representatives
- Any role requiring daily communication, scheduling, or email management

1.3 How to Use This Manual

This manual is intended for HR professionals, recruiters, trainers, and hiring managers responsible for implementing or interpreting the MS Outlook Proficiency Test. It explains the assessment structure, the skills covered, scoring guidelines, administration procedures, and supporting technical documentation.

- Chapters 1–3 provide an overview of the test, its structure, and the skills it measures.
- Chapters 4–6 contain practical information on administering, scoring, and interpreting results.



- **Chapter 7** presents the technical evidence supporting the reliability and validity of the test.
- Chapter 8 outlines security and fair-use guidelines.
- **Appendices** include supplemental information such as sample items, score tables, and technical summaries.

Readers do not need to read the manual sequentially. You may move directly to the sections relevant to your responsibilities.



2. Test Specifications

The MS Outlook Proficiency Test is a structured, multiple-choice assessment designed to measure practical and foundational skills in Microsoft Outlook. The test format, timing, and delivery are optimized for online administration, making it suitable for both remote and in-person testing environments.

Format: Multiple-choice questions (MCQ)

• Number of Questions: 20

Time Limit: 15 minutes

• Answer Options: 6 options per question, with one correct answer

2.1 Delivery Method

- Administered online through a secure, browser-based platform
- No software installation required
- Compatible with all modern browsers (Chrome, Edge, Firefox, Safari)

2.2 Device Compatibility

- Desktop or laptop computer recommended
- Tablets supported but not preferred due to screen size limitations
- Mobile phones not recommended

2.3 Skills Measured

The test evaluates basic, practical competencies in:

- Email Composition and Etiquette
- Inbox and Folder Management
- Calendar and Scheduling
- Attachments and File Management
- Email Organization and Search
- Rules and Quick Steps
- Security and Best Practices

2.4 Intended Difficulty Level

The test is designed for entry-level to early-intermediate users of Microsoft Outlook. Most items can be answered within 20–40 seconds, allowing adequate time for all test-takers to complete the full assessment within the 15-minute limit.



3. Content Domains

The MS Outlook Proficiency Test evaluates the essential skills required to efficiently manage email, calendars, tasks, attachments, and organizational tools within Microsoft Outlook. The 20 items in the test are distributed across several key content domains that reflect real-world communication and scheduling tasks commonly performed in administrative, clerical, coordination, and office-based roles. Each domain represents a distinct area of Outlook functionality, ensuring balanced coverage of foundational competencies.

3.1 Email Composition and Etiquette

This domain assesses the ability to write clear, professional emails using appropriate tone, structure, and etiquette. Items cover subject line clarity, proper use of CC and BCC, when to reply vs. reply all, selecting an appropriate greeting, managing long emails, avoiding overuse of urgency, and handling mistakes such as missing attachments or accidental sends.

Coverage: 4 items

3.2 Inbox and Folder Management

This domain focuses on managing incoming email effectively through folders, categories, flags, and follow-up tools. Skills include organizing emails into folders, using categories for workflow management, applying flags and reminders, managing inbox overload, and using features such as Focused Inbox.

Coverage: 2 items

3.3 Calendar and Scheduling

This domain evaluates a candidate's ability to manage appointments, meetings, and shared calendars in Outlook. Items assess skills such as creating meeting invitations, setting recurring meetings, using the Scheduling Assistant, managing meetings across time zones, sharing calendars, and cancelling or updating events.

Coverage: 3 items

3.4 Attachments and File Management

This domain measures the ability to work safely and efficiently with attachments. Skills include attaching files to emails, handling large files, recognizing missing attachments, previewing



attachments securely, removing or updating attachments, and understanding how edited files interact with Outlook.

Coverage: 3 items

3.5 Email Organization and Search

This domain assesses the ability to locate, categorize, and filter messages using Outlook's search and organization tools. Items address using search effectively, applying search filters, sorting email by columns, organizing with folders, using the Clean Up tool, and saving searches for later use.

Coverage: 3 items

3.6 Rules and Quick Steps

This domain evaluates automation and workflow-enhancement skills using Outlook's rules and Quick Steps features. Topics include setting up rules, the purpose of Quick Steps, when to use rules vs. Quick Steps, editing existing rules, and using Quick Steps for delegation.

Coverage: 3 items

3.7 Security and Best Practices

This domain focuses on identifying risks and maintaining safe communication habits in Outlook. Items assess the ability to recognize phishing emails, suspicious attachments, fraudulent requests, and safe vs. unsafe file types. The domain reinforces workplace expectations for secure digital communication.

Coverage: 2 items

3.8 Summary of Item Categories

Domain	Numbe	er of Items % of Test
Email Composition and Etiquette	4	20%
Inbox and Folder Management	2	10%
Calendar and Scheduling	3	15%
Attachments and File Managemen	t 3	15%



Domain	Number o	of Items % of Test
Email Organization and Search	3	15%
Rules and Quick Steps	3	15%
Security and Best Practices	2	10%
Total	20	100%



4. Item Development

The MS Outlook Proficiency Test consists of 20 multiple-choice questions designed to measure practical skills and foundational knowledge in Microsoft Outlook. Each item targets a specific skill within one of the test's content domains and is written to reflect realistic workplace communication and scheduling tasks. The development process prioritizes clarity, relevance, fairness, and alignment with professional testing standards.

4.1 Item Types

The MS Outlook Proficiency Test includes several item formats to ensure comprehensive assessment of real-world Outlook usage:

- **Knowledge-based items** assessing understanding of Outlook features, email tools, calendar functions, and communication concepts.
- Scenario-based items presenting workplace situations requiring the candidate to choose the appropriate action (e.g., how to respond to a meeting conflict, handle a suspicious email, or organize mail effectively).
- Interface identification items recognizing Outlook icons, buttons, or options such as CC/BCC, flags, filters, or scheduling tools.
- **Problem-solving items** requiring candidates to determine how to resolve email, calendar, organization, or security-related issues.

These formats ensure coverage of both conceptual knowledge and applied skill in communication and scheduling contexts.

4.2 Answer Options

Each item contains one correct answer and several distractors. Distractors are intentionally designed to reflect common mistakes or misunderstandings seen among Outlook users. This approach ensures that incorrect answers provide meaningful diagnostic information about candidate skill gaps.

4.3 Item Writing Guidelines

Items are created following standardized guidelines to ensure fairness, clarity, and relevance:

- Clarity Questions are written in plain language, avoiding unnecessary complexity or ambiguity.
- 2. **Relevance** Every item reflects a real email, calendar, or organizational task encountered in office roles.



- 3. **Authenticity** Scenarios simulate practical communication, scheduling, and organizational situations.
- 4. **Balance** Items are distributed evenly across the Outlook content domains to reflect the test blueprint.
- 5. **Time Awareness** Items are short enough to be answered within the average time per question (≈40 seconds).
- 6. **Accessibility** Each item is designed to be answerable within 20–30 seconds, supporting the 15-minute test duration.

4.4 Example Item

Domain: Email Composition & Etiquette **Skill:** Appropriate use of Reply vs. Reply All

Question:

You receive an email sent to a group of five colleagues. You need to respond privately to the sender without notifying the entire group. Which option should you choose?

- A. Reply All
- B. Forward
- C. Reply
- D. CC the original recipients
- E. New Email
- F. Reply Private

Correct Answer: C – Reply

4.5 Item Review and Quality Control

Before items are included in the final Outlook test, each one undergoes a structured review and validation process:

- Internal review by Outlook subject-matter experts
- Verification of technical accuracy, relevance, and alignment with workplace best practices
- Pilot testing with sample users to evaluate clarity and cognitive demand
- Statistical analysis of item difficulty and discrimination using real test data
- Revision or removal of any item that performs outside acceptable standards

This process ensures that each question contributes effectively to the assessment's reliability and validity.



5. Scoring & Interpretation

The MS Outlook Proficiency Test uses an objective scoring system based on the number of correct responses. Scores reflect a candidate's proficiency in essential Outlook skills and provide valuable insight for hiring, development, and training decisions.

5.1 Scoring Method

- Correct response = 1 point
- Incorrect or unanswered response = 0 points
- Total score = sum of all item scores (maximum = 20, minimum = 0)
- No penalty is applied for guessing

5.2 Score Reporting

Candidates receive a raw score (0-20) and a percentile rank.

Raw score: Number of correctly answered test items.

Percentile rank: A percentile rank indicates the percentage of test-takers who scored at or below a given score. For example, a score at the 75th percentile means the candidate performed as well as or better than 75% of the comparison group.

5.3 Interpretation of Scores

Advisory Score Ranges

Based on empirical performance patterns, candidate scores can be interpreted in the following advisory ranges:

Raw Score	Percentile rank	Interpretation
0-6	0-17	Very limited Outlook familiarity; difficulty managing email, calendar, or communication tasks.
7 – 8	25 – 35	Basic awareness; able to perform simple Outlook actions with some supervision.



9 – 11	43 – 64	Developing proficiency; suitable for roles requiring
		regular email and calendar management.
12 – 14	72 – 88	Solid proficiency; capable of handling communication,
		scheduling, and organization tasks confidently.
15 - 20	93 - 100	Strong proficiency; efficient and accurate with key
		Outlook features, including organization, scheduling
		tools, and best-practice email management.

Percentile Norms

Percentile ranks provide additional context by showing how a candidate compares to the tested population (n = 560).

Percentile	Score (out of 20)	Interpretation
10th	4	Lower 10% of test-takers
25th	6	Below-average performance
50th (Median)	10	Typical performance
75th	13	Strong foundational skills (top 25%)
90th	15	Excellent performance (top 10%)

Example interpretations:

- A score of **10** places a candidate at the **50th percentile** the median performance.
- A score of 13 places a candidate in the top 25% of all test-takers.
- A score of **15** places a candidate among the **top 10%** of respondents.

5.4 Suggested Use of Scores

Employers may use both advisory ranges and percentile ranks when interpreting results:

- Entry-level or customer support roles: Raw scores of 9+ recommended.
- Administrative or coordination roles with heavier Outlook use: Scores of 12+ recommended.



 Positions involving complex scheduling or communication workflows: Scores of 15+ preferred

Scores should not be used as the sole predictor of job success; they should be combined with interviews, job history, or practical exercises.

5.5 Limitations

While the test provides a reliable indicator of Outlook proficiency, it measures conceptual and applied knowledge in a multiple-choice format and does not directly test hands-on performance within the Outlook application. Candidates who understand Outlook concepts may still vary in practical speed, workflow habits, or communication style.

Additionally, results may be influenced by factors such as reading comprehension, familiarity with digital interfaces, or time-management skills during the assessment.



6. Test Administration

The MS Outlook Proficiency Test is designed for flexible online delivery, allowing organizations to administer the assessment in remote, hybrid, or traditional in-person settings. This chapter outlines best practices, technical requirements, and recommended procedures to ensure fair and consistent testing conditions.

6.1 Delivery Method

- The test is delivered online through a secure testing platform.
- No software installation is required.
- The test can be accessed through any modern browser (e.g., Chrome, Edge, Firefox, Safari).

6.2 Technical Requirements

To ensure a smooth testing experience, the following minimum requirements should be met:

- Internet connection: Stable broadband connection.
- **Device:** Laptop or desktop computer; while mobile devices are supported, they are not recommended for best usability.
- Browser settings: JavaScript and cookies enabled.
- Screen size: At least 13-inch display recommended for readability of tables and charts.
- Pop-up blockers: Disabled if they interfere with test navigation.

6.3 Test Environment

- Candidates should complete the test in a quiet environment free of interruptions.
- Use of Outlook or other software tools is not permitted during the test.
- It is recommended that candidates close other applications and browser tabs to maximize performance and reduce distractions.

6.4 Candidate Instructions

Before starting the test, candidates should be informed of the following:

- The test consists of 20 multiple-choice questions.
- The time limit is 15 minutes.



- Each question has six answer options, only one of which is correct.
- Questions can be skipped and returned to later.
- Scores are based on the number of correct answers; there is no penalty for guessing.

6.5 Security Measures

- Candidates are asked to confirm their identity before the test can begin.
- Test sessions should be monitored if security is critical (e.g., proctored testing for recruitment).
- Candidate results are stored securely in compliance with data privacy regulations.

6.6 Sample Questions

Before the timed portion begins, candidates are presented with two sample questions. These items are:

- **Untimed** they do not count toward the 15-minute limit.
- **Unscored** responses do not contribute to the final test result.
- **Representative** they illustrate the types of questions used in the test, including both text-based and screenshot-based items.

The purpose of the sample questions is to:

- Familiarize candidates with the test format and navigation.
- Allow candidates to practice selecting an answer before the test begins.
- Reduce anxiety and ensure smoother test-taking performance.



7. Validity & Reliability

The MS Outlook Proficiency Test has undergone statistical evaluation and content review to ensure it measures the intended construct, entry-level Microsoft Outlook skills, accurately and consistently. This chapter summarizes the empirical evidence supporting the test's validity and reliability.

7.1 Sample

The reliability and validity analyses presented in this manual are based on performance data collected from a sample of 560 individuals who completed the MS Outlook Proficiency Test.

The sample includes candidates from a range of age groups, countries, and occupational backgrounds, providing a diverse basis for evaluating test performance.

7.2 Face Validity

Face validity refers to the extent to which a test appears to measure what it is intended to measure. After completing the test, candidates were asked whether the questions reflect real workplace Outlook tasks.

- 80.8% of respondents selected Agree.
- **15.6%** selected *I don't know*.
- **3.6%** selected *Disagree*.

These results indicate that a strong majority of respondents perceive the test as relevant and representative of Outlook use in professional settings.

7.3 Construct Validity

Construct validity assesses whether the test accurately measures Outlook proficiency, as intended.

Self-Reported Skill Level

Candidates rated their own Outlook ability on a scale from *Novice (1)* to *Expert (5)*. Average test scores increased consistently across all self-reported levels:

Novice: ~9 correct answers

Basic: ~10 correct

Intermediate: ~11 correct

Proficient: ~12 correct

○ Expert: ~15 correct



This clear progression indicates that the test effectively distinguishes between different proficiency levels.

7.4 Item and Test Performance

Although item-level statistics are documented in Appendices, key findings are:

- Items span an appropriate range of difficulty, with most falling between 30–80% correct.
- **Discrimination values** were generally strong (>0.30), meaning items effectively differentiate between high- and low-scoring candidates.

These results confirm that the test is functioning as intended at the item level.

7.5 Reliability Evidence

Reliability was measured using Cronbach's alpha across all 20 items.

- **Cronbach's alpha = 0.74**, which indicates good internal consistency.
- This means that the items collectively measure a coherent construct: Outlook proficiency.

7.6 Summary of Validity Evidence

- Face validity: Strong most test-takers agreed the test reflects real workplace
 Outlook tasks.
- **Construct validity**: Strong higher self-reported skill levels consistently correspond with higher test scores.
- **Reliability**: Good internal consistency ($\alpha = 0.74$).

Taken together, these findings provide robust evidence that the MS Outlook Proficiency Test is a valid and reliable instrument for assessing Outlook Proficiency in professional contexts.



8. Security & Fair Use

Maintaining the security, fairness, and ethical use of the MS Outlook Proficiency Test is essential to ensuring valid results, protecting test content, and supporting fair decision-making. This chapter outlines recommended practices and guidelines for protecting test integrity and using results responsibly.

8.1 Test Security

- **Session monitoring:** Employers may choose to use online proctoring, in-person supervision, or browser lockdown tools for high-stakes testing situations.
- **Data protection:** Candidate responses and scores are stored securely in compliance with data privacy regulations (e.g., GDPR).

8.2 Candidate Integrity

- Candidates are expected to complete the test individually without assistance.
- Use of external resources such as Outlook, internet searches, or notes is not permitted.

8.3 Fair Use of Scores

- Test results should be used as one component of a broader hiring or development decision-making process.
- Scores should not be the sole basis for employment decisions. Instead, they should be combined with interviews, references, and job experience.
- Employers should ensure that score interpretation is job-related and consistent with the skills required for the role.
- Candidates should not be denied employment opportunities on the basis of test performance alone if Outlook Proficiency is not essential to the role.

8.4 Ethical Guidelines

- Employers must ensure that the test is administered in a non-discriminatory manner.
- Reasonable accommodations should be provided for candidates with documented needs.
- Test data must be handled with confidentiality and should not be shared outside the hiring process



9. Appendices

The following appendices provide supporting information and reference materials for the Outlook Proficiency Test.

Appendix A. Sample Item

Domain: Email Composition & Etiquette **Skill:** Appropriate use of Reply vs. Reply All

Question:

You receive an email sent to a group of five colleagues. You need to respond privately to the sender without notifying the entire group. Which option should you choose?

- A. Reply All
- B. Forward
- C. Reply
- D. CC the original recipients
- E. New Email
- F. Reply Private

Correct Answer: C - Reply

Appendix B. Technical Requirements Checklist

Device: Desktop or laptop computer

Internet: Stable broadband connection

• Browser: Chrome, Edge, Firefox, or Safari (latest versions recommended)

• Screen size: 13-inch or larger recommended

Browser settings: JavaScript and cookies enabled

• Optional: Headphones or quiet testing environment



Appendix C. Score Interpretation Tables

Advisory Score Ranges

Raw Score	Percentile rank	Interpretation
0-6	0-17	Very limited Outlook familiarity; difficulty managing
		email, calendar, or communication tasks.
7-8	25 – 35	Basic awareness; able to perform simple Outlook actions
		with some supervision.
9 – 11	43 – 64	Developing proficiency; suitable for roles requiring
		regular email and calendar management.
12 – 14	72 – 88	Solid proficiency; capable of handling communication,
		scheduling, and organization tasks confidently.
15 - 20	93 - 100	Strong proficiency; efficient and accurate with key
		Outlook features, including organization, scheduling
		tools, and best-practice email management.



Appendix D. Percentile Norm Ranges

Percentile Norms (n = 560)

Raw Score	N	Percentile
1	1	1
2	5	3
3	9	4
4	10	7
5	13	13
6	34	17
7	22	25
8	45	34
9	54	43
10	47	53
11	59	64
12	58	72
13	44	80
14	48	88
15	44	93
16	30	95
17	9	97
18	10	98
19	9	99
20	8	100



Appendix E. Item Statistics

Item Number	Difficulty	Discrimination
1	0.64	0.36
2	0.93	0.35
3	0.72	0.46
4	0.52	0.49
5	0.47	0.16
6	0.78	0.46
7	0.47	0.48
8	0.50	0.43
9	0.56	0.44
10	0.56	0.45
11	0.30	0.39
12	0.24	0.23
13	0.20	0.19
14	0.63	0.58
15	0.45	0.51
16	0.31	0.32
17	0.54	0.50
18	0.38	0.48
19	0.33	0.47
20	0.61	0.53



Appendix F. Norm Group: Age Distribution

Age	Percentage	
18 – 25	24.6%	
26 – 35	33.6%	
36 – 45	20.5%	
46 – 60	17.1%	
61+	4.1%	

Appendix G. Norm Group: Country Distribution

Country	Percentage
United States	44.5
Canada	8.4
South Africa	6.1
United Kingdom	5.9
Philippines	2.8
India	2.4
New Zealand	2.3
Australia	2.2
Ireland	1.8
Singapore	1.0



Appendix H. Norm Group: Occupational Group

Occupational Group	Percentage
Admin and Clerical	40.5
Other	14.3
Human Resources	5.5
Management	5.2
Banking and Finance	5.2
Sales and Marketing	3.6
Health Care	3.2
Information Technology	3.2
Engineering	2.7
Education - Teaching	2.1
Law Enforcement and Legal	2.0
Retail	0.9